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[bookmark: _Toc347930418][bookmark: _Toc400710772][bookmark: _Toc416178116][bookmark: _Toc342477083][bookmark: _Toc346216914]Business Process Overview
[bookmark: _Toc400710773][bookmark: _Toc347930420]ePro2 Administer Vendor Contracts business process is for the purpose of creating, managing and amending contracts.
The contract process starts upon posting and notification of a contract award to the bidder/vendor- the last step in the ePro1 Manage Sourcing process. Contracts are created by award through Solicitation, direct entry into FI$Cal or copying from an existing contract. Purchase Orders are the encumbering mechanism for contracts. 
Contracts are created for Leveraged Procurement Agreements (LPAs) and departmental contracts. DGS manages the LPA contracts using the FI$Cal Administer Vendor Contracts module making LPAs available in FI$Cal for Departments and local agencies for procurement of goods and/or services.
The Administer Vendor Contracts process includes ongoing activities necessary to create or amend a contract, build contract documents, approve contracts, track contract usage, create change orders, enforce dollar thresholds, evaluate contracts for an extension or rebid and finally, retiring a contract. The option exists to set up contracts for multiple years in FI$Cal and a document library is maintained to contain templates for reusable clauses, configurators, question groups and other document authoring components.
FI$Cal enforces spending against maximum amounts, tracks the contract term dates (start and end), in addition to tracking the individual PO releases and remaining balances of contracts. Prior to a contract being “Approved” and considered an executed contract in FI$Cal, it must pass through all of the collaboration and approval steps. 
Document approvals are used to track the development of a contract. The Department Buyer can route documents for approval, monitor the approval process from person to person, log the person(s) approving or denying the document, and review suggestions. This process facilitates a more detailed control of a document, and ensures that the contract complies with the policies and standards of the department and state. 
The ePro2 – Administer Vendor Contracts process ends when the contract is available to departments for procurement of goods or services or when the contract is evaluated for rebid, extension or closeout.


[bookmark: _Toc416178117]FI$Cal System and Organizational Roles
	EPRO2-ADMINISTER VENDOR CONTRACTS

	SYSTEM ROLE
	ORGANIZATIONAL ROLE OR ASSIGNMENT

	Department Buyer
	Department

	Department Collaborators
	Department

	Department Approver 1
	ISD Division Manager/Division Chief

	Department Approver 2
	Contracts and Procurement


[bookmark: _Toc395262025][bookmark: _Toc400710774][bookmark: _Toc416178118]Administer Vendor Contracts Process Steps Description
[bookmark: _Toc416178119]Create Contract Sub Process Steps Description
Contract creation starts after completion of the solicitation process where a vendor has been awarded the procurement contract to provide goods and/or services to the department, and after the award has been entered in FI$Cal. 
1. Verify contract information is correct: The Department Buyer verifies that the contract information is correct and communicates with suppliers on contractual issues. 
2. Select template and maintain logs: The Department Buyer may select from pre-defined templates located in the FI$Cal document template library or create an entirely new contract document. 
3. Collaboration? The collaboration feature in FI$Cal allows the Department Buyer to request collaboration in reviewing contractual documents, if required. The Department Buyer sets up the collaboration by selecting the Department Collaborators in the sequence in which they will be reviewing the document. Collaborators can be anyone with the proper security setup.
If Yes: Department Collaborators edit the contract in FI$Cal. Continue to step 4.
If No: The Department Buyer routes for workflow approval. Go to step 6.
4. Check out, edit, save and check in contract: FI$Cal creates a worklist for users who are selected as collaborators. The Department Collaborators check out, make edits, save and check in the document in FI$Cal. When a document is checked out and edited, FI$Cal maintains the document versions.
5. Review, edit and save document: After document collaboration is complete, the Department Buyer reviews the collaborator’s edits, updates the document as necessary and saves it in FI$Cal. 
6. Workflow approval: The Department Buyer may route documents for approval, monitor the approval process, log who approved or denied the document, and review comments made about the document. Approvers can add other reviewers to the approval process which is called an “ad hoc” approval. It applies only to the approval instance in which the addition occurs, and does not affect the overall approval flow. Only the approver who adds an ad hoc approval can delete it. 
7. Approved? Is the contract approved?
If Yes: The status of the contract is changed in FI$Cal. Go to step 9.
If No: The contract document is denied. Continue to step 8.
8. Contract document is denied: If the contract document is denied, it is routed back to the Department Buyer.
9. Contract status is approved: Once all approvers approve the contract document, the status is changed to “Approved” in FI$Cal.
10. Send document to vendor: The Department Buyer sends the approved FI$Cal contract document to the vendor for review.
11. Vendor reviews document: The vendor accesses the contract document in FI$Cal, and reviews the contractual terms and clauses.
12. Vendor signs contract? Wet signatures are still required from vendors on contracts. The vendor must sign the contract document first and the State signs last.
If Yes: The Department Buyer executes the contract in FI$Cal. Go to step 17.
If No: Discuss issues with the vendor. Continue to step 13.
13. Discuss issues: If the vendor does not sign the contract document, the Department Buyer discusses the issues with the vendor. The department needs to agree on vendor changes in order for the contract to move forward in the process.
14. Agree to changes? Does the department agree to the contract changes after discussion with the vendor?
If Yes: The Department Buyer edits and saves the document in FI$Cal. Go to step 16.
If No: The contract award is withdrawn. Continue to step 15.
15.  Contract award is withdrawn: The contract award is withdrawn. The contact may be awarded to the next bidder, the contract may be re-bid, or the contract is canceled.
16. Edit and save document: The Department Buyer edits the document, saves and checks in the edited version of the contract document to FI$Cal. If a contract document requires a vendor signature, the vendor must sign the contract document first and the State signs last.
17. Execute contract: An executed contract is one that has been through all of the collaboration and approval steps and appropriate signatures obtained. The Department Buyer has determined that the contract is ready to use in managing supplier contracts and executes the contract in FI$Cal.
18. Change status to approved: The Department Buyer changes the contract status to “Approved” in FI$Cal. 
19. Set up milestone tracking? The Department Buyer determines if project milestones need to be tracked in FI$Cal.
If Yes: The Department Buyer sets up the milestone tracking in FI$Cal Continue to step 20.
If No: The Department Buyer determines if a contract line item needs to be set up. Go to step 21.
20. Set up milestone tracking: The Department Buyer sets up project milestone tracking in FI$Cal.
21. Set up an item? Does the Department Buyer need to set up an item in FI$Cal? 
If Yes: Follow the PO1- Maintain Items for Purchase process. Continue to step 22.
If No: Determine if encumbrance is required. Go to step 23.
22. PO1-Maintain Items for Purchase: The process for PO1-Maintain Items for Purchase Process is followed.
23. Is an encumbrance required?  The Department Buyer  determines if an encumbrance is required.
If Yes: Follow the PO2-Manage Purchase Orders process. Continue to step 24.
If No: The process ends here.
24. PO2-Manage Purchase Orders: The process for PO2-Manage Purchase Orders is followed.
25. Contract updated with new Item IDs: Item IDs is a unique identifier of a good or service and used in conjunction with an LPA and may be specified by the United Nations Standard Products and Services (UNSPSC) codes. FI$Cal updates the contract lines with the new Item IDs.
[bookmark: _Toc416178120]Contract Amendment Sub Process Steps Description
A contract document amendment is an update to an executed contract in FI$Cal. Amendment processing occurs after executing the original contract document. The Department Buyer decides if an amendment to an existing contract is required. An amendment update can result from changes in a contract or source transactions.
1. Verify contract information is correct: The Department Buyer verifies that the correct executed contract information is in FI$Cal and makes the necessary changes to the contract per amendment requirements. 
2. Select preconfigured template: FI$Cal has preconfigured templates for creating an amendment or change order to an executed contract document. The Department Buyer can modify the preconfigured template language once it is inserted into the contract.
3. Collaboration? The Department Buyer sets up the collaboration by selecting the Department Collaborators in the sequence in which they will be reviewing the document. Collaborators can be anyone with the proper security setup.
If Yes: Department Collaborators edit the contract in FI$Cal. Continue to step 4.
If No: The Department Buyer routes for workflow approval. Go to step 6.
4. Check out, edit, save and check in amendment: FI$Cal creates a worklist for users who are selected as collaborators. The Department Collaborators check out, edit, save and checks in the contract amendment to FI$Cal. When a document is checked out and edited, FI$Cal maintains the document versions.
5. Review, edit and save document: After document collaboration is complete, the Department Buyer reviews the collaborator’s edits, updates the document as necessary and saves it in FI$Cal. 
6. Workflow approval: The Department Buyer may route documents for approval, monitor the approval process, log who approved or denied the document, and review comments made about the document. Approvers can add other reviewers to the approval process which is called an “ad hoc” approval. It applies only to the approval instance in which the addition occurs, and does not affect the overall approval flow. Only the approver who adds an ad hoc approval can delete it. 
7. Approved?
If Yes: The status of the contract is changed in FI$Cal. Go to step 9.
If No: The contract amendment is denied. Continue to step 8.
8. Contract document is denied: If the contract amendment is denied, it is routed back to the Department Buyer.
9. Contract status is approved: Once all approvers approve the contract document, the status is changed to “Approved” in FI$Cal.
10. Dispatch amendment to vendor: The Department Buyer sends the approved FI$Cal contract amendment to the vendor for review.
11. Vendor reviews amendment document: The vendor accesses the contract amendment and reviews the contractual terms and clauses.
12. Vendor signs amendment? Wet signatures are still required from vendors on contracts. The vendor must sign the contract document first and the State signs last.
If Yes: The Department Buyer executes the contract amendment in FI$Cal. Go to step 14.
If No: Discuss issues with the vendor. Continue to step 13.
13. Discuss issues: If the vendor does not sign the contract document, the Department Buyer discusses the issues with the vendor. The department needs to agree on vendor changes in order for the amendment to move forward in the process.
14. Agree to changes? Does the department agree to the contract amendment changes after discussion with the vendor?
If Yes: The Department Buyer edits and saves the document in FI$Cal. Go to step 16.
If No: The amendment is cancelled. Continue to step 15.
15. Cancel amendment: The Department Buyer cancels the contract amendment and the process stops here.
16. Edit and save document: If the state agrees, the Department Buyer edits the document, saves and checks in the edited version of the contract document to FI$Cal. If a contract document requires a vendor signature, the vendor must sign the contract document first and the State signs last.
17. Execute contract: An executed contract is one that has been through all of the collaboration and approval steps and appropriate signatures obtained. The Department Buyer has determined that the contract is ready to use in managing supplier contracts and opens the Document Management Page in FI$Cal and selects the “Execute Contract” button
18. Change status to approved: The Department Buyer changes the status to “Approved” in FI$Cal and saves. 
19. Amend PO: Once the contract amendment process is completed in FI$Cal, the corresponding purchase order (PO) can be amended to reflect the amended contract terms. 
[bookmark: _Toc416178121]Contract Compliance Sub Process Steps Description
Contract compliance sub confirms that a vendor is providing goods and/or services to the department as stated in the contractual terms and agreement.
1. Receive workflow notifications: The Department Buyer receives and reviews the FI$Cal generated worklist items or email notifications to review contract agreements or milestones. 
2. Review contract milestones: The Department Buyer reviews outstanding contract milestones, and asks the vendor to submit the documentation to satisfy the milestones (for example, a quarterly report).
3. Submit quarterly report: The vendor provides a quarterly report document listing all contractual agreement terms and metrics, and evidence of compliance with the contract terms.
4. Update the contract agreement: The Department Buyer updates the contract agreement and task list in FI$Cal with the compliance information received from the vendor.
5. Prepare usage report: The Department Buyer generates usage reports based on compliance information entered into FI$Cal.
6. Reconcile discrepancies: The Department Buyer reviews the FI$Cal usage report for discrepancies with the vendor/suppler. 
7. Contact vendor to resolve issues: The Department Buyer contacts the vendor to resolve issues or discrepancies based on compliance reports.
8. Resolve issues: The vendor resolves discrepancies in the compliance reports.
9. Receive revised documentation: The Department Buyer receives revised compliance documentation from the vendor.
10. Prepare revised monthly usage report: The Department Buyer prepares a revised monthly usage report using the updated information provided by the vendor.
[bookmark: _Toc416178122]Contract Extension, Rebid or Retire Sub Process Steps Description
This sub process is for contract extensions, rebidding a supplier contract, and retirement of a supplier contract. 
1. Receive contract expiration notice: The Department Buyer receives a contract expiration notice from FI$Cal about supplier contracts.	
2. Evaluate contract: The Department Buyer evaluates contract terms and supplier performance, and recommends one of the following: contract extension, contract rebid, or retirement of the contract.
3. Extend contract? The Department Buyer decides to extend the contract after evaluation.
If Yes: The Department Buyer assigns the next amendment number for the contract. Continue to step 4.
If No: The Department Buyer determines if the contract will be retired. Continue to step 5.
4. Assign new amendment number: The Department Buyer assigns the next amendment number. For example, if it is the first amendment, it will read “Amendment 1”.
5. Retire contract? After evaluation, the Department Buyer may choose to retire the contract.
If Yes: The Department Buyer notifies the supplier that the contract is being retired. Go to step 7.
If No: The Department Buyer re-bids the contract. Continue to step 6.
6. Re-bid contract: The Department Buyer re-bids the supplier contract.
7. Notify supplier: The Department Buyer notifies the supplier that the supplier contract is being retired without a renewal or amendments.
8. Close out contract: The contract agreement is terminated between the State and the supplier. The contract status in FI$Cal is updated to “Closed”.

[bookmark: _Toc400710781][bookmark: _Toc416178123]Interfaces and Reports
	TITLE
	PURPOSE OR DESCRIPTION
	TC #
	INTERFACE
IN/OUTBOUND
	REPORT
Y/N

	Open Purchase Order Report
	Open Purchase Order Report for Open PO Lookup
	
	
	Y

	PS Query
	This report is utilized to track and report the procurement activity from start (requisition) to completton (Purchase Order)
	
	
	Y

	Contract Reports
	SCO Audits may run reports to view details such as Contract ID, Item Description, Quantity, Price
	
	
	Y


[bookmark: _Toc400710782][bookmark: _Toc416178124]Interdependent Business Processes and/or Work Activities
Business processes are executed in sequential steps or in parallel with other work activities. When a process is dependent on another to start, end, or continue, an interdependency is created through the interaction of activities within a given end-to-end business process.

Interdependency with the ePro2-Administer Vendor Contracts Process exists as follows:
Pre-requisite Business Process(es):
· AP1 – Establish and Maintain Vendors
· ePro1 – Manage Sourcing
· ePro3 – Create and Approve Requisitions
Succeeding Business Process(es):
· PO2 – Manage Purchase Orders
· PO3 – Receive Goods and Services
[bookmark: _Toc416178125]Governing Statute, Regulation, and Policy
The statue, regulation and policy references that govern specific activities and responsibilities associated with the ePro2-Administer Vendor Contracts Process include, but may not be limited to, the citations in the following table.
	GOVERNING AUTHORITY
	IDENTIFIER
	DESCRIPTION

	California Code of Regulation
	CCR Title 2, Div 2, Chpt 1, Articles 3 & 7

	These regulations reference the manner and method of claim creation, the components of claims, and their presentation to the Controller for approval/rejection and subsequent payment.

	State Administrative Manual (SAM)
	Sections 7800, 7900,
8000, 8100, 8400

	These SAM sections is a reference statewide management policy.


	State Contracting Manual (SCM)

	Volumes I, II and III

	· The SCM is a reference source to statewide procurement and contracting policies and procedures.






[bookmark: _Toc416178126][bookmark: _Toc340072078][bookmark: _Toc342477111][bookmark: _Toc346216943][bookmark: _Toc400710786]Appendix
[bookmark: _Toc416178127]Associated Process Flow Diagram(s)
SCO FI$Cal SharePoint: ePro2-Administer Vendor Contracts Diagram Flow
[bookmark: _Toc400710788][bookmark: _Toc416178128]FI$Cal Terms and Definitions
FI$Cal Public Website: http://www.fiscal.ca.gov/documents/FISCalTerminology121112AlphaListing.pdf
[bookmark: _Toc400710789][bookmark: _Toc416178129]Associated Job Aid(s)
FI$Cal Public Website, FI$Cal Service Center, Job Aids and Training Tips: http://www.fiscal.ca.gov/access-fiscal/job_aids.html 
[bookmark: _Toc400710790][bookmark: _Toc416178130]Associated UPK(s)
FI$Cal Public Website, FI$Cal Service Center, FI$Cal Training Academy (requires User Login): http://www.fiscal.ca.gov/access-fiscal/fiscal_training_academy/index.html 
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